
         

 

FELLSMERE  
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 5, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.fellsmerewcd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

District Offices 
109 North Willow Street 
Fellsmere, Florida 32948. 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
August 5, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. July 11, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing………………………………………Page 2 

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-06 – Adopting Goals and Objectives…………………………..Page 6 

2. Discussion of District Management 

H. Administrative Matters 

1. Financials………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 9 

2. Attorney 

3. Manager 

I. Comments from the Public 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Publication Date
2024-07-26

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL
DISTRICT
NOTICE OF SPECIAL
BOARD MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (Board) of the Fellsmere Water Control District
(District) will hold a Special Board Meeting (Meeting) on August 5, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. in the District O�ces
located at 109 North Willow Street, Fellsmere, Florida 32948.
The purpose of the Special Board Meeting is for the Board to consider district goals and objectives, discuss
district management, and any other business which may properly come before the Board. The meeting is open
to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. There may be occasions
when Board members or District Staff may participate by speaker telephone. A copy of the Agenda for the
meeting may be obtained from the Districts website (www.fellsmerewatercontroldistrict.org) or by contacting
the District Manager at (772) 345-5119.
Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment
should contact the District Managers O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. If you are
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY)
/ 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Managers O�ce.
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at
the public hearing or meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly,
the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and
evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT
www.fellsmerewatercontroldistrict.org
PUBLISH: INDIAN RIVER PRESS JOURNAL 07/26/24TCN10406872

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 11, 2024 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Fellsmere Water Control District (“District”) of July 11, 2024, was 
called to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Fellsmere City Hall Auditorium located at 22 S. Orange Street, 
Fellsmere, Florida 32948. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Indian River Press Journal on May 1, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the attendance of Supervisors Greg Nelson, Richard Carnell and John Kurtz 
constituted a quorum, and it was in order for the meeting to proceed.  
 
Also in attendance were: District Manager Frank Sakuma and Stephanie Brown of Special District 
Services, Inc.; District Attorney Jonathan Johnson of Kutak Rock LLP (by phone); and District 
Engineer George Simons, P.E. of Carter Associates.  
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

1. May 9, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Carnell made a motion, seconded by Mr. Nelson, and passed unanimously, approving the May 9, 
2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes.  
 
Note: At approximately 5:31 p.m., Mr. Sakuma recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the 
Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget. 
 
F. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Proof of Publication  
 
Mr. Sakuma noted the public hearing notice was published in the Indian River Press Journal on June 
21, 2024 and June 28, 2024, as legally required. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget  
 
The following individuals submitted comment cards and addressed the Board: Mark Kopecky, Dylan 
Morton, Michelle Platt, Cody Platt, Wendy Austin, Jed Arañes, Tami Lyn Fortner, Jay Axelrod, Mary 
Lantz, Chad Smalley, Rick, Hugh Gardner, and Fred Hamilton. 
 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 

Resolution No. 2024-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING 
A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Kurtz, seconded by Mr. Carnell, and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution 2024-02, as presented. 
 
Note: At approximately 6:15 p.m., Mr. Sakuma closed the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 Final Budget and simultaneously reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
  
There was no old business to come before the Board. 
  
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 Designating a Qualified Public Depository 
 
Resolution No. 2024-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, DESIGNATING A QUALIFIED PUBLIC 
DEPOSITORY, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 280, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
2024-03 as presented.  
 

2. Consider  Resolution No. 2024-04 Authorizing Bank Account Signors 
 
Resolution No. 2024-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT DIRECTING SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC. 
TO ESTABLISH A LOCAL BANK ACCOUNT AT SEACOAST BANK FOR THE 
DISTRICT AND APPOINT TODD WODRASKA, JASON PIERMAN, PATRICIA 
LASCASAS, B. FRANK SAKUMA, Jr., RICHARD M. CARNELL, Jr. AND GREGORY 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

P. NELSON AS SIGNERS ON THE ACCOUNT AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
2024-04 as presented. 
 
Mr. Kurtz asked staff to verify if there is a fidelity bond for non-supervisors. Mr. Sakuma responded 
that he would bring the information back to the Board at the September 12, 2024, Board Meeting. 
 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-05 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting 
Schedule 

 
Resolution No. 2024-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING 
SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND SETTING THE TIME AND 
LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
2024-05 as presented.  
 

4. Discussion Regarding Buffer Preserve Drainage 
 
Mr. Kurtz discussed his tour with staff to the buffer preserve drainage area. District Engineer George 
Simons suggested that a study be done on the preserve drainage.  
 
Consensus of the Board was to direct staff to locate the executed stormwater agreement and reengage 
all parties to discuss creating a stormwater plan. 
 

5. Discussion Regarding Management Contract Scope of Work 
 
This item was not discussed. 
 

6. Supervisor Kurtz Report to Board County & City Liaison 
 
Mr. Kurtz spoke with County Commissioner Susan Adams and Fellsmere City Manager Mark Mathes 
and was advised that there are no specific grants available to assist with cleaning the ditches but there 
may be grants to keep them from being obstructed. He also advised that the District may obtain some 
funding if they were to partner on one or more County and City projects which have elements of district 
drainage in the project.  
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Financials 
 

Mr. Sakuma noted that the financials were included in the Board package. During Board discussion of 
the financials, another request was made to staff for future reports. Mr. Kurtz asked for projected 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

monthly cash flows to “end of year,” and for encumbrances to be noted on the report. Examples of 
encumbrances were the three large contracts in excess of $1.2 Million, which are not reflected in the 
current report format. 
 

2. Attorney 
 
District attorney Jonathan Johnson reminded the Board that the 4 hours of required ethics training is 
due by December 31, 2024. He also discussed the public records law and advised the Board to notify 
and send any public records requests that they receive to district management and legal counsel. 
 

3. Manager 
 
Mr. Sakuma had no further comments for the Board. 
 
J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
The following individuals submitted comment cards and addressed the Board: Henry Wolfe, Ken 
Switzer, and Jed Arañes.  
 
   
K. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
There were no objections. 
 

 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice-President 
 
 

Page 5



RESOLUTION 2024-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING GOALS, 
OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Fellsmere Water Control District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-

purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 298, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2024, the Florida Legislature adopted House Bill 7013, 
codified as Chapter 2024-136, Laws of Florida (“HB 7013”) and creating Section 189.0694, 
Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to HB 7013 and Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, beginning 
October 1, 2024, the District shall establish goals and objectives for the District and create 
performance measures and standards to evaluate the District’s achievement of those goals and 
objectives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared the attached goals, objectives, and 
performance measures and standards and presented them to the Board of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution the attached goals, objectives and performance 
measures and standards. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL 
DISTRICT: 

  
 SECTION 1. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. The District Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the goals, objectives and 
performance measures and standards as provided in Exhibit A. The District Manager shall take 
all actions to comply with Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, and shall prepare an annual report 
regarding the District’s success or failure in achieving the adopted goals and objectives for 
consideration by the Board of the District.  
 
 SECTION 3.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the 
other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of August, 2024.  
 
 
ATTEST:     FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Performance Measures/Standards and Annual Reporting 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 7



Exhibit A 

Program/Activity:   District Administration 
Goal:    Remain compliant with Florida Law for district meetings & records 
Objectives:    

 Notice all District regular, special, and public hearing meetings 
 Conduct all post-meeting activities  
 District records retained in compliance with Florida Sunshine Laws 

Performance Measures: 
 All Meetings publicly noticed as required (yes/no) 
 Meeting minutes and post-meeting action completed (yes/no) 
 District records retained as required by law (yes/no)    

Program/Activity:   District Finance 
Goal:    Remain Compliant with Florida Law for all district financing activities 
Objectives:     

 District adopted fiscal year budget 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year 
 Process all District finance accounts receivable and payable 
 Process all District bond related financing activities 
 Support District annual financial audit activities 

Performance Measures: 

 District adopted fiscal year budget (yes/no) 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year (yes/no) 
 District accounts receivable/payable processed for the year (yes/no) 
 Bond requisitions/reporting/continuing disclosures processed (yes/no) 
 “No findings” for annual financial audit (yes/no) 

o If “yes” explain 

Program/Activity:   District Operations 
Goal:    Insure, Operate and Maintain District owned Infrastructure & assets 
Objectives:     

 Annual renewal of District insurance policy(s) 
 Contracted Services for District operations in effect 
 Water Control Plan in effect 
 Compliance with all required permits 

Performance Measures: 
 District insurance renewed and in force (yes/no) 
 Contracted Services in force for all District operations (yes/no) 
 Water Control Plan in place (yes/no) 
 Permits in compliance (yes/no) 

Page 8



Fellsmere
Water Control District

 Financial Report For
July 2024

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26


	Fellsmere Water Control District - August 5, 2024 Special Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 11, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-06 – Adopting Goals and Objectives
	Financials




